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March 26, 2019 
 
This digest includes responses to questions received during the Bidders Conference and by email by 

noon Friday, March 22, 2019. Extra time was required to respond to the high volume of technical 

questions. 

 

PLEASE SEE THE UPDATED RESPONSE TO THE QUESTION STARTING AT THE BOTTOM OF PAGE 2 

 

TECHNICAL REQUIREMENTS 

Q: On the LOI do you have to list that you are going to be a part of a consortia? Can that wait? 

A: The letter of intent is not a commitment, it is only an indicator of intent. The LOI includes a field to 
indicate whether the lead agency is bidding as a consortium or a sole applicant, but bidders are not 
locked in basedon the LOI. 

Q: Should we submit 1 LOI for each proposal we plan to submit? Or just 1 LOI including all the types of 
proposals we plan to submit?  

A: Bidders should submit 1 LOI for each proposal they plan to submit. 

Q: If a bidder is applying with different partners for different funding proposals, should they submit 
different LOI’s for each? 

A: Yes 

 

FUNDING AND FISCAL REQUIREMENTS 

Q: Is it correct that the VSHSL funds can support low-income, incumbent workers in King County who 
need ELL, Basic Computers, Transportation, Child Care and/or case management support? 

A: Yes, these are examples of how VSHSL funds may be used. 

Q: The braiding of federal and county funds will require a lot data and fiscal tracking.  How are bidders 
expected to cover costs related to data and fiscal tracking, collecting and reporting? May the budget 
include a plan for consortia members to contribute funds above and beyond the 25k for coordination? 
Given the consortia model, it will require a lot communication and data tracking. 25k does not seem as 
if it would be enough to cover the costs that may be involved.  

A: Section 3.9 of the RFP states that bidders must develop a plan for how they will manage these 
functions, but does not require that these functions be covered with the $25,000 allowed to cover 
consortium coordination costs. 

Q: Are there going to be separate accounting requirements for King County vs WIOA funds?  

A: Yes, expenses allocable to each fund must be separated on the invoice form provided by the WDC 

Q: Is the strategy to braid resources (including WIOA, VSHSL, BFET) cleared by DSHS for BFET match 
purposes? 
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A: The WDC encourages bidders to consider braiding BFET and other resources into proposals, but it is 
up to bidders to work with their funders to determine how and whether resources other than WIOA can 
be braided into their proposals. 

Q: On Page 37, D. Indirect Rate, it asks for a federally approved indirect rate or states that the agency 
must use a “de minims” indirect cost rate if they do not have an approved indirect rate.  For profits do 
not have either an Indirect Rate nor use a “de minims” rate.  Can agencies that fully cost allocate all 
expenses continue to use this methodology without having to use either of these proscribed rates? 

A: De Minimus rate must be used if the provider qualifies (e.g., has not previous had a federally 
approved rate). The WDC will consider special situations with adequate documentation describing the 
situation. 

Q: Shouldn’t a cost allocation plan be required of all consortium members that will provide ongoing (not 
vendor) services?  The proposal seeks the fiscal agents capacity and resources for cost allocation, but is 
there any concern for the sub-recipients to the lead agency and their capacity and resources for cost 
allocation?  Should the lead agency ask their consortium partners for proof of this ability?  Are the sub-
recipients to the lead agency required to cost allocate their expenses if it is not a fee for service?  Would 
the pass-through dollars from the lead agency be considered federal sub-recipient dollars to the sub-
contractors to the lead agency? 

A: The consortium lead is responsible for its partners allocations, allowable costs and ability to carry out 
the contract requirements. All WIOA funds contracted to a consortium are federal funds; all King County 
funds contracted to a consortium are county funds. 

Q: All of the federal resources that bidders could leverage for this RFP are required to be used “as a last 
resort” – participants must not be able to obtain funding from other sources before they can access 
most federal funds.  Is there a hierarchy among these funds? 

A: It’s up to bidders to meet the expectations of each funder leveraged in a proposal based on customer 
needs and funding source requirements. 

Q: WIOA limits funding to $7000 per person served. Does that also include money spent on computers, 
staff training, consortium coordination, etc…i.e. is the limit based only on direct training costs? 

A: WDC Policy 03-2000 limits the use of WIOA funds for providing training to customer to a lifetime limit 
per customer of $7,000 and does not apply to non-WIOA funded services. 

Q: If blending funds for all intensive career services, how would you be able to disaggregate the funds to 
serve a non-King County resident?  

A: If a contractor chose to use the very limited exemption provided in Technical Assistance Memo 4 to 
serve non-King County residents, it would be their responsibility to assure that only WIOA funds were 
used for this purpose. 

Q: Do bidders have to include funds for the required WorkSource partners? Does partnering with 
WorkSource staff mean bidders will need to include resources for those partners? How will this work? 

A: There is no requirement to fund partners other than those included in each proposal. 

Q: Can we have non-funded partnerships? For example, co-locate a staff person? (in-kind) 

A: Yes, the RFP encourages partnership with partners who are funded and not funded through this RFP. 

 

PLEASE SEE UPDATED RESPONSE TO THE FOLLOWING QUESTION: 

https://static1.squarespace.com/static/53c04ba6e4b0012ad48d079e/t/589247c4b3db2b320552557a/1485981637321/Policy+03-2000+ITA+Policy+Final_1.17.17.pdf
https://static1.squarespace.com/static/53c04ba6e4b0012ad48d079e/t/54b4106fe4b0404ef3776c33/1421086831622/ta4.pdf
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Q: Could a vendor relationship include both outreach and referrals and workshop facilitation (as long 
as not ongoing customer services)? Could a vendor relationship be established to pay for referrals and 
be paid on a fee for service basis? In an effort to involved a diverse array of CBOs, could a lead 
applicant pay smaller CBOs for successful referrals? (without the small CBO being a sub-contractor) 
  
UPDATED RESPONSE: 
A: For King County VSHSL funded contracts (Seniors/Care Givers; Vulnerable Populations, Emergency 
Aid Pilot ($150,000 VSHSL funds braided with $100,000 WIOA Adult funds)):   A lead applicant could 
pay smaller CBOs for successful referrals as a business expense.  A fair and reasonable amount would 
need to be approved by the WDC of Seattle-King County as part of the contracting and budgeting 
phase of the contract negotiations. 

  
For WDC of Seattle-King County WIOA funded contracts (Adult, Dislocated Worker, Emergency Aid 
Pilot ($100,000 WIOA Adult funds braided with $150,000 VSHSL funds)): WIOA funds provided 
through this procurement are Federal funds and are subject to Federal program requirements. Please 
refer below to the Federal definitions of Contractor and Subrecipientto ensure the costs are allowable 
for the activities outlined in the question above. All budget items are subject to approval by the WDC 
of Seattle-King County as part of the contracting and budgeting phase of the contract negotiations. 

  
Contractor (Uniform Grants Guidance now refers to vendors as “contractors”): 

• Provides goods and services within normal business operations 

• Provides similar goods and services to many different purchasers 

• Normally operates in a competitive environment (profit driven) 

• Provides goods or services that are secondary to program operation 

• Not subject to compliance with Federal program requirements as result of the agreement (but 
similar requirements many apply otherwise) 

  
Subrecipient: 

• Determines eligibility for Federal assistance 

• Performance measures based on meeting Federal program objectives 

• Responsibility for programmatic decision-making 

• Must follow applicable Federal program requirements specified in the Federal award 

• Uses Federal funds to carry out program for purpose specified in authorizing statute (contrasted 

with providing goods or services for recipient’s benefit).  
 

Q: How long will it generally take for the WDC to pay invoices? 

A: Contractors are required to submit invoices at least monthly; the WDC pays invoices within 5 
businesses days of receipt of WIOA and King County funds. 

Q: How long will it generally take for King County to pay on invoices?  

A: King county is contracting with the WDC for this RFP, therefore, contractors will submit invoices to 
and receive payment from the WDC.   

Q: Are seat costs at the WorkSource site separate or included in the listed available funding? Will the 
WDC continue to directly pay for the seat IFA costs?  
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A: Bidders are not required to include seat costs that the WDC covers through the Infrastructure 
Funding Agreement; seats in the WorkSource system will be negotiated in contracts. 

 

ELIGIBILITY AND ENROLLMENT 

Q: Do clients enrolled with braided funding have to be enrolled in WIOA to receive VSHSL services?  

A: The goal of the RFP is to braid the two funding sources together and co-enrollment allows braiding to 
occur, so customer should be co-enrolled to the greatest extent possible. However, on a limited basis, it 
may be possible to serve some customers with only VSHSL funds.  

Q: Can VSHSL braided funds be used for non-VSHSL target groups through ISD? 

A:  Individuals prioritized for WIOA Adult funded services are likely to fit the VSHSL vulnerable 
populations definition and therefore likely to be eligible for services funded with VSHSL funding. Some 
Dislocated Workers may also meet VSHSL eligibility criteria. Those who are not seniors or the caregivers 
of seniors are not eligible for services funded with VSHSL Senior and Caregiver funding.  

Q: Are long-term unemployed and mature workers (seniors) considered over-represented in the out-of-
work population? Each of these groups is included in the WDC’s definition of “individual with a barrier 
to employment” but not included in the list of groups that the WDC is interested in receiving proposal 
to increase service levels (Section 3.4.3 page 17). Is this correct? 

A: The WDC is interested in expanding services and outcomes for the WIOA eligible populations farthest 
from opportunity listed in Section 3.4.3. Bidders may plan to include other populations with barriers to 
employment in their proposals. Please note that the VSHSL Senior and Care Giver funding may only be 
used to serve individuals aged 55 and care givers. 

Q: On page 17 eligibility and priority, one of the identified groups is limited English proficiency.  Is there 
a definition for this?  Commonly, limited English proficiency levels are segregated through levels 1-6 and 
above that level are no longer considered limited English proficient. 

A:  Limited English Proficient refers to individuals who are English language learners, individuals who 
have low levels of literacy (an individual who is unable to compute or solve problems, or read, write, or 
speak English at a level necessary to function on the job, or in the individual’s family, or in society as per 
Department of Labor Training and Employment Guidance Letter 19-16), and individuals facing 
substantial cultural barriers.  

Q: Can VSHSL senior and care givers funds be used to work with customers and job seekers 55+? Does 
the job seeker have to have a caregiver to be eligible? How does this RFP define caregivers? What are 
the specific occupation groups?  Is there a list of specific definition for the term caregiver? 

A: The VSHSL defines Seniors as a persons who are 55 years old or older and “caregivers” of seniors as a 
person who, without pay, cares for or supervises another person who requires such care or supervision 
due to disability, chronic illness or, in the case of a senior, age-related decline. Government-provided 
benefits or financial assistance provided directly to a person for being a caregiver are not considered 
pay within this definition. While homeless or unstably housed seniors would qualify for VSHSL-funded 
programs, so, too, would other seniors who may need employment services but who are not unstably 
housed or homeless.  A senior does not have to have a caregiver to be eligible to receive services 
funded with VSHSL Senior and Caregiver funding. No specific occupation groups are listed. 
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A:  The WIOA and VSHSL definitions of “homeless” are provided below.  Bidders may use either or both 
in developing their proposals. 

WIOA Homeless individuals - an individual 
who lacks a fixed, regular, and adequate 
nighttime residence, and includes: 
A. An individual who is 
i. Sharing the housing of other persons due 

to loss of housing, economic hardship, or 
a similar reason; 

ii. Living in a motel, hotel, trailer park, or 
campground due to the lack of 
alternative adequate accommodations;  

iii. Living in an emergency or transitional 
shelter; 

iv. Abandoned in a hospital; 
v. Waiting foster care placement; or 

vi. An individual who has a primary 
nighttime residence that is a public or 
private place not designed for or 
ordinarily used as a regular sleeping 
accommodation for human beings. 

VSHSL Homeless:  A household who lacks a fixed, 
regular, and adequate nighttime residence, meaning:  
a. A household with a primary nighttime residence 

that is a public or private place not designed for or 
ordinarily used as a regular sleeping 
accommodation for human beings, including; a car, 
a park, abandoned building, bus or train station, 
airport, or camping ground; or 

b. A household living in a supervised publicly or 
privately operated shelter designated to provide 
temporary living arrangements; or 

c. An individual who is exiting an institution where he 
or she resided for 90 days or less and who resided 
in an emergency shelter or place not meant for 
human habitation immediately before entering that 
institution; or 

Any household who: 
a. Is fleeing, or is attempting to flee, domestic 

violence, dating violence, sexual assault, stalking, or 
other dangerous or life-threatening conditions that 
relate to violence against the individual or a family 
member, including a child, that has either taken 
place within the individual’s or family’s primary 
nighttime residence or has made the individual or 
family afraid to return to their primary nighttime 
residence; 

b. Has no other residence; and lacks the resources or 
support networks, e.g. family, friends, and faith-
based or other social networks, to obtain other 
permanent housing. 

At risk of homelessness 
Q: Throughout the RFP, the phrase “barriers to employment” is used.  Appendix A: Definitions, item G, 
provides a definition of “Individual with a Barrier to Employment” and lists “populations.”  Where is the 
definition of barriers, which would include things like transportation? 

A: WIOA describes populations with barrier rather than specific barriers when defining barriers to 
employment.  Proposers should design services to address the barriers to employment faced by those 
job seekers they intend to serve under this RFP.  

Q: Can you clarify the difference between vulnerable populations and people who are furthest from 
opportunity?  

A: The terms “Vulnerable Populations” and “those farthest from opportunity” have been used 
interchangeably for this RFP.  VSHSL defines “Vulnerable population" as “persons or communities that 
are susceptible to reduced health, housing, financial or social stability outcomes because of current 
experience of or historical exposure to trauma, violence, poverty, isolation, bias, racism, stigma, 
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discrimination, disability or chronic illness.”  The list of those priority populations further from 
opportunity in section 3.3.4 is based on data provided by King County.  

Q: Priority Populations – Can the WDC give us expectation % (lower/max) for each category?  

A: The WDC has set an overall goal of increasing the representation of those farthest from opportunity 
listed in section 3.4.3 by 70% among WIOA Adult and 40% among WIOA DW funded individuals 
compared to previous years.  The WDC does not have an expectation % for any of the categories listed. 

Q: Is the King County and WIOA definition of homelessness identical?  If not, which will be used for this 
RFP? 

Q: California passed policy allowing the provision non-job placement WIOA funded services (like WIOA 
Title II funded basic skill development) to those without full legal documentation to work in the U.S.  
What is Washington’s/the WDC’s approach to this.  For example, if customers are served in a group 
setting, like a workshop or classroom, what if a portion of a group doesn’t have full legal 
documentation, would you still be able serve these individuals with the funds in provided in this 
program? 

A: Washington has not provided similar policy regarding the use of WIOA Title I Adult and Dislocated 
Worker Funding. However, VSHSL funds may be used for the provision of “non-job-placement” services 
to individuals without full legal documentation.   

Q: What documentation must be collected and be maintained in case files to prove eligibility? Do we 
need to collect copy of SS card? What data does the county require for verification of eligibility? 

A: WIOA Eligibility and documentation requirements are described in Attachment A to WDC Eligibility 
Policy Handbook and include documenting that individuals are legal to work in the U.S. through 
accepted I-9 Documentation such as, driver’s license /ID card along with Social Security card, etc.   
Similarly, employment eligibility documentation is required for VSHSL funded services that involve 
placing people into jobs that require employment eligibility.  Training, education and other supports 
funded with VSHSL do not require documentation. King county will not require separate participant 
files.  

Q: Is there a King County application form to enroll participants in order to use the VSHSL funding, or do 
successful bidders have to come up with our own? 

A: There is no King County specific application form. The WDC will work with successful bidders to 
ensure that they collect and track the appropriate demographic and eligibility data for the funding 
streams included in their contracts.  

 

PERFORMANCE 

Q: On Page 20 two of the listed Additional Performance Measures are listed as “Household Income at 
Enrollment” and “Household Income at Exit”.  What definition is being used for household?  Is this the 
WIOA definition of household or another? 

A: Bidders should use the WIOA definitions of household. 

Q: Does the WDC expect that each organization funded through this RFP will be able to meet WIOA 
performance measures, or will the WDC expect that the requirements are met across the entire 
system, with those organizations serving customer farther from opportunity to meet lower 

http://www.seakingwdc.org/policies-guidelines/
http://www.seakingwdc.org/policies-guidelines/
https://www.uscis.gov/i-9-central/acceptable-documents/list-documents/form-i-9-acceptable-documents
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performance requirements? Do bidders have to promise we will be able to meet all performance 
measures? Will there be alternative performance measures aligned to the needs of customers? For 
example, if we focus on strongly serving customers experiencing homelessness and/or other 
challenges, a performance measures of 75% of 2nd Quarter employment is not realistic. 

A: WIOA performance requirements must be met by the WorkSource Seattle-King County System as a 
whole – the levels established for successful bidders will depend on a number of factors that will be 
addressed during contract development. 

Q: Do all of the WIOA performance measures need to be met in the first year?  

A: The collection of data for three WIOA performance measures depends on the dates when customer 
exit to employment and the fourth is based on the date of training completion and exit to 
employment. Therefore, it is unlikely WIOA performance data will be collected on all participants 
enrolled between July 1, 2019 and June 30, 2020 during the first year of contracts resulting from this 
RFP. 

Q: Are there carry-in numbers that need to be captured in operational design and planned 
performance for currently enrolled participants?  

A: Current customers who have not completed services by June 30, 2019 will have to be served under 
the new contracts that will start on July1, 2019.  Arrangements to serve those customers will be made 
during contract negotiations.  Bidders should not include these customers in their proposals. 

Q: Where is performance from? ETO or external database?  

A: WIOA performance is generated from the data provided by contractors in ETO. Contractors must 
provide data to the county through a structured Excel spreadsheet, and may draw information to 
complete that form from ETO and other sources as discussed in the Data and Reporting section of this 
Q&A Digest 

 

SERVICES 

Q: On Page 34, B. Services Provided, it states that, “Those applying for WIOA Title 1 Dislocated Worker 
funding must also describe how rapid response services will be provided.”  Is it the expectation that 
WIOA DW service providers will now provide rapid response services?  Currently, this is the 
responsibility of the Business Service Team. 

A: Contractors bidding to provide Dislocated Worker Services must have a plan for supporting rapid 
response activities described in section 3.3.6 of the RFP to support the customers they are focusing on 
in their proposals.  

Q: On page 25, one example listed under Training Accessibility states that “VSHSL could provide a 
stipend to cover the costs of part time in-home care so that the care giver could attend…”  How would 
this work?  Would the funded entity pay the client (caregiver) a stipend so they can pay for someone 
else to care for a senior with disabilities? 

A: Yes, it is possible to provide a stipend to the care giver or the senior receiving care, so that the care 
giver can upgrade skills or become employed. 

Q: Training services references credentials – what if the training isn’t credentialed? On the Planned 
Outcomes form, “Credentials Earned by New Enrollees Completing Training” – it refers to Appendix A 
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for a definition of credential.  Appendix A does not provide a definition of credential.  What is the 
definition of credential? 

A: A credential is a verification of an individual’s qualifications or competence provided by a third party 
with the relevant authority to issue such as credential (U.S. Department of Labor 2010).  Examples 
include certificates, licenses and degrees. While not every training program has to result in a 
credential, bidders are asked to project how many of enrollees are likely to earn credentials by 
6/30/20. 

Q: The RFP refers to accredited training providers.  How is this defined? 

A: We were unable to find this reference in the RFP.  The RFP does refer to training providers included 
on the Eligible Training Provider List (ETPL). Information is available at: 
http://www.careerbridge.wa.gov/Page.aspx?cid=Eligible_Training_Provider_List 

Q: Is there a maximum cost that you allocate per person? The RFP lists $700 for supportive services 
and $7,000 for training. Please clarify. 

A: The WDC has not established a maximum cost per participant in this RFP.  WDC Policy 03-2000 
Individual Training Accounts and Policy 03-2001 Supportive Services and Needs Based Payments list 
the upper limits for WIOA funded training and supportive services described in the question above. 

Q: Can we stop providing follow-up services for WIOA/VSHSL co-enrolled clients with WIOA funds? We 
would still provide follow-up but not with WIOA funds.  

A: Yes, it is possible to fund supportive services during follow up with VSHSL funds. 

Q: Is there funding for follow-up/ retention services for continued training after placement of 
employment? 

A: Yes, it is possible to use VSHSL funds to support training during the follow-up/retention after 
placement into employment. 

Q: It was stated at the bidders conference that the most of the WIOA performance measures of 
retention. Is it possible to use funds to support customers after placement to support retention?  

A: Yes.  See the two questions above and Sections 3.3.3, 3.3.5 and 4.2.2 of the RFP. 

Q: Can we propose to include training services that are not on the Eligible Training Provider List? If no, 
can we still propose to leverage training services that are not on the ETPL?  

A: Occupational skills training funded with a WIOA Individual Training Account must be listed on the 
ETPL.  However, Section 3.3.2 of the RFP describes other types of training that do not have to be on the 
ETPL and a variety of short-term trainings may be provided as an individualized service, and therefore 
not required to be on the ETPL. 

Q: Please advise on the process for adding training programs to the ETPL? 

A: The process for adding programs to the Eligible Training Provider List is available at 
http://www.careerbridge.wa.gov/Page.aspx?cid=Eligible_Training_Provider_List and described in WDC 
Policy  08-2001 Training Provider Eligibility and Appeals 

Q: If all members of consortium must follow WIOA requirements, how can you provide cash assistance 
under King County Levy funds? What would be requirements for such support services?  

http://www.careerbridge.wa.gov/Page.aspx?cid=Eligible_Training_Provider_List
https://static1.squarespace.com/static/53c04ba6e4b0012ad48d079e/t/589247c4b3db2b320552557a/1485981637321/Policy+03-2000+ITA+Policy+Final_1.17.17.pdf
https://static1.squarespace.com/static/53c04ba6e4b0012ad48d079e/t/589247c4b3db2b320552557a/1485981637321/Policy+03-2000+ITA+Policy+Final_1.17.17.pdf
https://static1.squarespace.com/static/53c04ba6e4b0012ad48d079e/t/5b05ee44562fa7b63cd5d176/1527115337193/Policy+04-2001_SupportiveServices_V9_0524-2018_EC-Final.pdf
http://www.careerbridge.wa.gov/Page.aspx?cid=Eligible_Training_Provider_List
https://static1.squarespace.com/static/53c04ba6e4b0012ad48d079e/t/54b418dfe4b05a0789757044/1421088991181/ProviderEligPolicy.pdf
https://static1.squarespace.com/static/53c04ba6e4b0012ad48d079e/t/54b418dfe4b05a0789757044/1421088991181/ProviderEligPolicy.pdf
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A: WIOA fiscal requirements apply only to WIOA funding. A WIOA participant who is co-enrolled in 
another program that provides cash assistance is not prohibited from receiving such funds.   

 

DATA AND REPORTING 

Q: What scares me about braiding funding is multiple accounting systems, multiple data systems and 
multiple reporting points. Who will be managing all of this? Will there be common definitions? one 
contract with wdc? Multiple contracts with city and county and wdc? 

A: The WDC and King County are working together to align data requirements to the extent possible.    

Q: Will data need to be entered into both the WIOA MIS system (ETO) and the King County MIS system 
(VSHSL) for all customers co-enrolled in both programs through braided funds? 

A: As described in the Q & A Digest dated 3/18/19 any organization receiving WIOA funding in the state 
of Washington, must track results in ETO, the mandatory state Management Information System. For 
VSHSL funds, contractors will export data from an existing MIS into a standardized Excel spreadsheet 
provided by King County.  If an organization is unable to export data for all of the fields required by King 
County, they will need to hand enter that data on a quarterly basis.  Appendix C compares the data 
elements collected in ETO and the data elements likely to be collected by King County which will be 
finalized prior to the implementation of contracts.   

Q: If individuals who identify as LGBTQ (or other than hetero) are priority populations, do we really 
need to ask all our customers about their sexual orientation? This feels intrusive.  

A: Questions about gender/sexual orientation should be included in the enrollment process, along with 
all the other demographic data that is collected.  Individuals who are uncomfortable disclosing this 
information may choose not to identify their gender/sexual orientation.  Attempts to collect this data 
are intended to assure that services are provided to and outcomes obtained all of the populations 
farthest from opportunity identified in the RFP. 

Q: In Section 3.7.1 it lists software requirements not to exceed $1,500.  Are we expected to install this 
ourselves? What if the amount is exceeded? How will training for ETO be provided? Is there a limit on 
how many staff receive training or is it up to bidders to decide how many people need to be trained? 

A: $1,500 is only an estimate of what it would cost for technology that meets the requirements for 
running the ETO software. The WDC will provide technical assistance for the installation of ETO and 
training for those who will be using the system.  Any staff who needs to use ETO to serve customers will 
be trained to do so. 

 

REQUIRED DESIGN ELEMENTS 

Q: On page 26, it states that, "not all of the partners included in a consortium proposal are required to 
be on-site at WorkSource centers, affiliates or connections sites or King County VSHSL funded hubs," 
but on page 27 it states that, "WIOA funded partners are required to dedicate a portion of their staff 
time to serve as members of functional teams organized around customer needs."  How can all WIOA 
funded partners fulfill the functional team requirements if they are not required to be on-site? 

A: The WDC encourages bidders to describe in their proposal how functional teams can support those 
providing services on site at current and future WIOA centers, affiliates, and connection sites as well as 
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those who might be located in community organizations located close to where the prioritized 
populations receive services. Bidders who are not currently connection sites may apply to become 
connection sites. 

Q: Is there a minimum expectation for a consortium to be at a WorkSource Center or Affiliate? WIOA 
Title I is a mandatory partner at WorkSource Centers, how will that be met through the RFP? Will there 
be an ISD (core service requirement) requirement percentage of staff time to provide core services at 
the brick and mortar WorkSource sites? 

A: While no minimum expectation for physical participation at WorkSource center or affiliate was 
included in the RFP, in awarding contracts, the WDC will have to be able to assure adequate coverage at 
WorkSource centers and affiliates across the entire system.   

Q: For organizations set up to provide services to a specific population, how does “all means all” work? 

A:  WorkSource centers and affiliates must provide any customer who accesses these sites a connection 
to services, including direct linkage referrals.  Any organization that only serves a specific population 
needs to propose how it will work with the on-site partners at WorkSource to help assure that all are 
able to get access to services. 

Q: What is the minimum connection with WorkSource physical locations? 

A: There is no minimum connection with WorkSource physical locations identified in the RFP.  Bidders 
should propose what makes more sense in terms of the customers they intend to serve and the 
resources available through WorkSource. 

Q: How will it work to have braided funds from VSHSL and integrated service delivery to serve all 
customers in the WorkSource system? 

A:  Current contractors serve both specific populations with barriers to employment and others who 
access WorkSource services.  Braiding VSHSL funds with WIOA increases the availability of more flexible 
resources for those who are farthest from opportunity. 

Q: If an organization is focusing on a sector that isn’t a focus for the WDC on can you still apply for this 
grant opportunity? How broad or narrow definitions of the sectors? 

A: Sectors are only one aspect of the RFP.  Bidders should answer the question about sectors based on 
their current work and/or their planned future work. 

 

EMERGENCY AID PILOT 

Q: Is there requirement to use those Emergency funds Active in WIOA in order to use the emergency 
funds after exit? 

A:  Emergency funds provided to a customer after exit may not be paid for with WIOA resources. 

Q: Regarding pilot, do participants have to be co-enrolled in WIOA and VSHSL? Do they have to meet 
WIOA Adult eligibility? Does the pilot have to follow DOL/WDC/ESD guidelines or is it exempt dur to 
pilot status? Does the WDC policy regarding supportive services apply to the pilot? Do participants have 
to meet the requirements of both of the two funding streams? 
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A:  The WDC is not able to remove federal WIOA requirements for the pilot. Instead the pilot braids 
VSHSL with WIOA funding in order to provide a more flexible resource that is not governed by WIOA. 

Q: Are there differences between what support services can be offered through emergency aid pilot 
versus other services?  

A: Yes, the ability to provide cash assistance and stipends is specifically called out in Section 5 of the RFP 
and is different than other services described in the RFP. 

Q: Could someone propose a small basic income pilot or similar proposal that only serves a small 
number of individuals at a high cost? 

A: The RFP does not specify how many individuals should be served through the Emergency Aid Pilot or 
the cost of providing services to the individuals to be served.  Bidders should develop their proposals 
based on the service delivery design they intend to implement and evaluate within the criteria provided 
in Section 5 of the RFP. 

Q: Do all of the requirements of the RFP need to be completed for the Emergency Aid pilot? Does the 
$200,00 minimum bid requirement described in section 2.8 apply? 

A: Yes and yes 

 


